Rawe John C.
Reading...
ADV 0298
PRICE 10c

Reading to Save the Home

A Key to Practical Pamphlet Literature

Homemaking, Home Building, and Productivity in Homes

A BIBLIOGRAPHY OF FIVE- AND TEN-CENT PAMPHLETS

by JOHN C. RAWE, S. J.

Published in collaboration with the Catholic Rural Life Conference



THE QUEEN'S WORK
3742 W. Pine Blvd. St. Louis, Mo.

Imprimi potest:

Peter Brooks, S. J.

Praep. Prov. Missourianae

Nihil obstat:

F. H. Kehlenbrink, S. T. L.

Censor Librorum

Imprimatur:

→ Joannes J. Glennon

Archiepiscopus Sti. Ludovici

Sti. Ludovici, die 19 Junii 1941

Any financial profit made by the Central Office of the Sodality will be used for the advancement of the Sodality Movement and the cause of Catholic Action.

1941 THE QUEEN'S WORK, Inc.

Deacidified

Table of Contents

	P_{I}	GE
1.	The Discussion Club Way in Small (Home) Groups	
2.	Marriage, Parenthood, Duties of Parents, etc	
3.	Productivity and Equipment for Productivity in Homes	13
4.	The Productive Home: Foods, Food Processing, Cooking, Canning, Storage, etc	15
5.	The Productive Home: Fabrics, Clothing, Textiles, etc	21
6.	The Productive Home: The Vegetable Garden	22
7.	The Productive Home: The Fruit Garden	26
8.	Family Life in Christ: Holy Mass, the Liturgy, etc.	28
9.	Home Building and Home Repair Projects	30
0.	Cooperatives	34
1.	Credit Unions	38
12.	Health: Medical Care	39
3.	Farm Tenancy	40
14.	Equipment for the Rural Family Unit: Farm Buildings, Farm Engineering, Farm Construction	43
15.	Equipment for Livestock: Hogs, Sheep, Cattle (Beef and Dairy), Poultry	46
16.	Equipment for the Rural Family Unit: Care of Livestock — Breeding, Growing, Feeding, Management, etc.	48
17.	Care of Fields and Crops: Biology, Conservation, Diversification	56
18.	The Use of Competition and Awards for Progress in Home Building and Home Activity	64



Reading to Save the Home

by JOHN C. RAWE, S. J.

THE home, especially when it is on a piece of land, can be a great laboratory which offers daily opportunities for marvelous experimentation and the restoration of some sound domestic economy. In order to get an introduction to the wonders of this laboratory, people must have good practical literature dealing with productivity in homes and with good soil practice.

Most Rev. Vincent J. Ryan, D. D. Bishop of Bismarck, North Dakota

A KEY

to

PRACTICAL PAMPHLET LITERATURE

for

Homemaking, Home Building, and Productivity in Homes

A BIBLIOGRAPHY OF FIVE- AND TEN-CENT PAMPHLETS

Quantity prices may be secured for discussion groups. Write directly to publishers for quotations on quantity orders.

What Everyone Should Know About the Home

How to Build It

How to Keep It Productive

How to Make It the Center of Family Ownership

How to Make It the Center of Family Planning

How to Make It the Center of Family Life

How to Make It the Center of Individual and Family Sanctification

The bibliographies are grouped in sections for the purpose of helping discussion groups and families in selecting certain points related to the home and the land and the community, special points which they may wish to discuss and take action upon. When homes are the spiritual, economic, and social centers for family activity, and when local communities contain natural groupings for families in planning and cooperation in essential economic functions, we have the foundations for a sound, democratic, and organic society and right social order.

List of Publishers

America Press, 53 Park Place, New York, N. Y.

American Friends Service Committee, Philadelphia, Pa.

American Hospital Association, 18 E. Division St., Chicago, Ill.

American Medical Association, 535 N. Dearborn St., Chicago, Ill.

Benziger Brothers, 26 Park Place, New York, N. Y.

Biodynamic Farming and Gardening Association, Inc., Kimberton Farms, R. 2, Phoenixville, Pa.

Bruce Publishing Co., 540 N. Milwaukee St., Milwaukee, Wis.

Building America, Inc., 425 W. 123rd St., New York, N. Y.

Carnegie Endowment for International Peace, New York, N. Y.

The Catholic Center, 125 Wilbrod St., Ottawa, Ont., Can.

The Catholic Rural Life Information Center, Collegeville, Minn.

The Catholic Truth Society, 38 Eccleston Square, London, S. W. 1, England

Central Bureau Press, 3835 Westminster Pl., St. Louis, Mo.

Central States Cooperative League, 1410 N. Main St., Bloomington, Ill.

Confraternity of the Precious Blood, 5300 Fort Hamilton Parkway, Brooklyn, N. Y.

Consumer Distribution Corporation, 205 E. 42nd St., New York, N. Y.

Cooperative League, 167 W. 12th St., New York, N. Y.

Cornell University College of Agriculture, Ithaca, N. Y.

Eastern Cooperative League, 112 Charlton St., New York, N. Y.

Eastern Michigan Cooperative Association, 341 Woodland, Detroit, Mich.

The Farmers' Union Cooperative Education Service, Jamestown, N. D.

Foreign Policy Association, 8 W. 40th St., New York, N. Y. I. H. C. Demonstration Farms, Grand Forks, N. D.

The Institute of Social Order, 24 W. 16th St., New York, N. Y.

International Catholic Truth Society, 407 Bergen St., Brooklyn, N. Y.

Iowa State Agricultural College, Ames, Iowa

Knights of Columbus, P. O. Drawer 1670, New Haven, Conn.

La Leche Motherhood Shrine, St. Augustine, Fla.

League for Industrial Democracy, 112 E. 19th St., New York, N. Y.

The Liturgical Press, Collegeville, Minn.

Michigan State College of Agriculture and Applied Science, Agricultural Experiment Station, East Lansing, Mich.

Midland Cooperative Wholesale, 739 Johnson St., N. E., Minneapolis, Minn.

Milbank Memorial Fund, 40 Wall St., New York, N. Y.

Modern Age Books, Inc., 155 W. 44th St., New York, N. Y.

Monastery of Our Lady of Sorrows, 3121 Jackson Ave., Chicago, Ill.

Northern States Cooperative League, Minneapolis, Minn.

The National Catholic Rural Life Conference, 525 Sixth Ave., Des Moines, Iowa

National Catholic Welfare Conference, 1312 Massachusetts Ave., N. W., Washington, D. C.

New York State College of Agriculture, Ithaca, N. Y.

Ohio Farm Bureau, Educational Dept., 246 N. High St., Columbus, Ohio

Our Sunday Visitor Press, Huntington, Ind.

Public Affairs Committee, 30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, N. Y.

Paulist Press, 401 W. 59th St., New York, N. Y.

The Queen's Work Press, 3742 West Pine Blvd., St. Louis, Mo.

Julius Rosenwald Fund, 4901 Ellis Ave., Chicago, Ill.

St. Anthony's Guild Press, Franciscan Monastery, Paterson, N. J.

St. Francis Xavier University, Extension Dept., Antigonish, N. S., Canada

School of Living, Suffern, N. Y.

Charles Scribner and Sons, 597 Fifth Ave., New York, N. Y.

South Dakota State College of Agriculture, Brookings, S. Dak.

Spring Hill College, Spring Hill, Ala.

Survey Graphic, 112 E. 19 St., New York, N. Y.

The Texas Weekly, Dallas, Texas

University of California College of Agriculture, Berkeley, Calif.

University of Illinois College of Agriculture, Urbana, Ill.

University of Minnesota College of Agriculture, St. Paul, Minn.

University of Missouri, Agricultural Experimental Station, Columbia, Mo.

University of Nebraska College of Agriculture, Lincoln, Neb.

University of North Carolina Press, Chapel Hill, N. C.

Utah State Agricultural College, Logan, Utah

H. W. Wilson Co., 950 University Ave., New York, N. Y.

FIVE- AND TEN-CENT PAMPHLETS

Write directly to publishers for quotations on quantity prices. List of publishers' addresses to be found on pages 7, 8 and 9.

1. THE DISCUSSION CLUB WAY IN THE SMALL (HOME) GROUPS

- A Brief Guide to Methods in Discussion Groups—Bulletin D1, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Handbook for Discussion Leaders, Hubbard—Carnegie Endowment for International Peace, N. Y.
- Discussion Club Handbook-The Queen's Work Press.
- A Manual of Group Discussion, Judson—Circular 446, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- The Study Club Way of Adult Learning, O'Hearn—St. Francis Xavier University, Extension Dept., Can.
- What Is the Discussion Leader's Job?—Bulletin D3, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Suggestions for Group Discussion Leaders—Bulletin DN2, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Discussion Circles—Ohio Farm Bureau, Educational Dept.
- Guide for Discussion Circles, Hutchinson—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- We Learn by Doing—St. Francis Xavier University, Extension Dept., Can.
- How St. Francis Xavier University Educates for Action—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- How to Organize and Conduct Small Group Forums—Bulletin D2, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- A New Advance in Cooperative Education: Study Circles, W. P. Watkins—The Cooperative League, N. Y.

- How to Organize, to Conduct, to Take Part in Modern Group Discussion, Public and Private—H. W. Wilson Co.
- Learning Through Study Clubs—St. Francis Xavier University, Can.
- Study Clubs-Knights of Columbus, Conn.
- Suggestions for Discussion Group Members—Bulletin DN1, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- How to Plan Discussion Programs, Polson—Bulletin E419, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

2. MARRIAGE, PARENTHOOD, DUTIES OF PARENTS, ETC.

- Encyclical on Christian Marriage, Pope Pius XI—America Press.
- Encyclical on Christian Education, Pope Pius XI—America Press.
- The Pope and Christian Marriage, Cohauz and Smith—Benziger Brothers.
- Catholic Doctrine of Matrimony, F. J. Connell, C.Ss.R.—America Press.
- Christian Marriage, E. Schmiedeler, O. S. B.—Our Sunday Visitor Press.
- Training for Marriage, A. Gits, S. J.—Catholic Truth Society, England.
- What Is Marriage? Vermeersch and Bouscaren America Press.
- Your Partner in Marriage, Daniel A. Lord, S. J.—The Queen's Work Press.
- Christ and Women, Daniel A. Lord, S. J.—The Queen's Work Press.
- For Better, For Worse National Catholic Welfare Conference.
- Christian Marriage and the Family—National Catholic Welfare Conference.

- Family Life, J. Rickaby, S. J.—Catholic Truth Society, England.
- Family Life and Mass, J. Rickaby, S. J.—International Catholic Truth Society, Brooklyn, N. Y.
- Duties of Married Life, Cardinal Mercier—International Catholic Truth Society, Brooklyn, N. Y.
- Head of the Family, A. D. Frenay, O. P.—Central Bureau Press.
- Parenthood, E. Schmiedeler, O. S. B.—International Catholic Truth Society, Brooklyn, N. Y.
- Some Guiding Thoughts for Parents—National Catholic Welfare Conference.
- Parent and Child-National Catholic Welfare Conference.
- Concerning Your Children—National Catholic Welfare Conference.
- Integrity of the Home-National Catholic Welfare Conference.
- The Christian Home-National Catholic Welfare Conference.
- Duties of Parents Toward Their Children, B. Wolferstan, S. J. —Catholic Truth Society, England.
- Childhood Religion, E. Schmiedeler, O. S. B.—International Catholic Truth Society, Brooklyn, N. Y.
- The Pope and Christian Education, Cohauz and Smith—Benziger Brothers.
- A Catechism of Catholic Education—National Catholic Welfare Conference.
- Short Discussions on Marriage and Some Related Points, B. Morrison, S. J.—Bruce Publishing Co.
- The Pure of Heart, Daniel A. Lord, S. J.—The Queen's Work Press.
- How to Give Sex Instructions, P. J. Bruckner, S. J.—The Queen's Work Press.
- The Family, Maria Schlüter-Hermkes-America Press.
- Mothers' Manual, A. F. Coomes, S. J.—La Leche Motherhood Shrine, St. Augustine, Fla.

- Consecration of the Family to the Sacred Heart, Forrest, M. S. C.—Paulist Press.
- Consecration of Families to the Sacred Heart, E. J. Bernard, S. J.—Spring Hill College.

3. PRODUCTIVITY AND EQUIPMENT FOR PRODUC-TIVITY IN HOMES

FAMILY-UNITY ECONOMICS IN PRODUCTIVE HOMES

- How to Economize on Planning Your Home (bulletin)—School of Living.
- Convenient Kitchens-F. Bulletin 1513, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Electric Power in the Home (pamphlet)—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- The Electrified Home (pamphlet) Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Range Recipes (pamphlet)—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Refrigerator Recipes (pamphlet)—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D, C.
- Table Cookery (pamphlet)—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- The Art of Vegetable Cookery, Fenton and Brewer—Bulletin E178, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- How to Economize on Buying and Storing Food (bulletin)—School of Living.
- It Pays to Buy Wisely, Monroe and Henry—Bulletin E237, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- A Well Planned Food Supply—Miscellaneous Educational Chart 8.10, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- In Days of Plenty Provide for Lean Months—Miscellaneous Educational Chart 8.104, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- Home Canning of Foods for Family Use—Circular 394, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Planning and Recording Family Expenditures—F. Bulletin 1553, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Home Bookkeeping—F. Bulletin 511, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Cash Account Books—Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Home Budgeting—F. Bulletin 1564, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Family Food Budgets (pamphlet)—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Value of Family Living—Bulletin 281, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- What Can the Women Do? (pamphlet)—St. Francis Xavier University, Extension Dept., Can.
- Home Canning of Fruits, Vegetables, and Meats—F. Bulletin 1762, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- How to Economize on Vegetables (bulletin) School of Living.
- How to Economize on Fruit (bulletin)—School of Living.
- How to Economize on Canned Foods (bulletin)—School of Living.
- Gardens for Food Supplies—F. Bulletin 1746, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Permanent Fruit and Vegetable Gardens—F. Bulletin 1242, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Home Production of the Family's Food Supply—Bulletin 140, Agricultural Experiment Station, Michigan State College of Agriculture and Applied Science.
- The City Home Garden-F. Bulletin 1044, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Home Vegetable Garden—Bulletin 198, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- The Home Garden—Bulletin 344, New York State College of Agriculture.

- The Home Garden Circular 54, Utah State Agricultural College.
- The Farm Garden—F. Bulletin 1673, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Care of Food in the Home—F. Bulletin 1374, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Conserving Food Value, Flavor, and Attractiveness in Cooking Vegetables—Circular 265, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- "Keep the Home Fires Burning," Boyle—St. Francis Xavier University, Extension Dept., Can.

4. THE PRODUCTIVE HOME: FOODS, FOOD PROC-ESSING, COOKING, CANNING, STORAGE, ETC.

Family-Unit Economics in Productive Homes

- Convenient Kitchens—F. Bulletin 1513, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Development of a Successful Kitchen, Cushman—Bulletin E354, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- How to Economize on Canning (bulletin)—School of Living.
- Care of Food in the Home—F. Bulletin 1374, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Composition of Food Material (set of 15 charts)—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Nutrition (set of 11 charts)—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Child Feeding (set of 8 charts)—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Milk in Nutritional Research (a sketch of progress)—Yearbook Separate 1708, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Well-Nourished Children (bulletin)—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Bone Growth Begins Before Birth—Miscellaneous Educational Chart 8.271, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- Poorly Built Bones Go Wrong—Miscellaneous Educational Chart 8.272, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Food for Children—F. Bulletin 1674, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Getting the Most for Your Food Money (bulletin)—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Vitamin Content of Foods—Miscellaneous Publication 275, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Good Sources of Vitamins A and D-Miscellaneous Educational Chart 8.21a, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Good Sources of Vitamins B and C—Miscellaneous Educational Chart 8.21b, U. S. Department of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Vitamin Chart—Bulletin E289, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Food-Value Chart—Bulletin E71, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Low-Cost Food for Health—Bulletin E236, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- What Foods to Eat and Why, Matthews and Wood—Bulletin J58, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- A Fruit and Vegetable Buying Guide for Consumers—Miscellaneous Publication 167, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- How to Economize on Vegetables (bulletin)—School of Living.
- How to Economize on Buying and Storing Food (bulletin)—School of Living.
- A Guide to Good Meals for the Homemaker—Miscellaneous Circular 49, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Diets to Fit the Family Income—F. Bulletin 1757, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Table Cookery (pamphlet)—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Range Recipes (pamphlet)—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.

- Refrigerator Recipes (pamphlet)—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Some Ways of Cooking and Using Whole and Cracked Wheat Circular 382, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- How to Economize on Bread, Cake and Pastry (bulletin)—School of Living.
- How to Economize on Flour and Breakfast Foods (bulletin)—School of Living.
- Good Bread From Soft Wheat Flours—Circular 317, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Homemade Bread, Cake and Pastry—F. Bulletin 1775, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Ten Lessons on Batters and Doughs—Publication HE-P10, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Corn and Its Uses As Food—F. Bulletin 1236, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Corn: Ways of Using As a Low Cost Food—Circular 399, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Cookies for All Occasions—Publication HE-P8, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Salads for Variety—Publication HE-P9, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Success With Shortened Cakes—Publication HE-P12, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Frozen Desserts—Circular 462, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Sane Reducing Diets and How to Plan Them—Circular 433, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

Meats

- Meat Cooking (set of 7 charts)—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Curing Meats—Bulletin E241, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

- Meat Dishes at Low Cost—Miscellaneous Publication 216, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- How to Economize on Pork, Ham, and Lard (bulletin)—School of Living.
- Lamb and Mutton—F. Bulletin 1807, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Lamb As You Like It—Leaflet 28, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- We Can Kill a Lamb—Bulletin E271, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Poultry Cooking (set of 8 charts)—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Cooking Beef-Leaflet 17, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Pork in Preferred Ways—Leaflet 45, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Pork: Curing, Canning—F. Bulletin 1186, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Cooking Cured Pork—Leaflet 81, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Beef: Cutting, Canning—F. Bulletin 1415, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- We Can Kill a Beef or a Veal—Bulletin E273, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

Dairy Products

- How to Economize on Milk and Cream (bulletin)—School of Living.
- Caring for Cream—Bulletin 69, Iowa State College of Agriculture.
- Making Butter—F. Bulletin 876, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Making and Using Cottage Cheese—F. Bulletin 1451, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Milk for the Family—F. Bulletin 1705, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- Cooking Milk and Cream—F. Bulletin 976, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Inexpensive Cooling Tanks for Milk and Cream—Bulletin EC725, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Butter-making, Guthrie—Bulletin E269, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- How to Economize on Butter, Cheese, and Ice Cream (bulletin)
 —School of Living.
- Varieties of Cheese: Descriptions and Analyses—Dept. Bulletin 608, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Making American Cheese for Home Consumption—F. Bulletin 1734, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Composition and Properties of Goat's Milk As Compared With Cow's Milk—Technical Bulletin 671, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Milk Goats—F. Bulletin 920, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Dairy Goat—Bulletin E414, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

Poultry Products

- How to Economize on Poultry and Eggs (bulletin)—School of Living.
- Eggs at Any Meal—Leaflet 39, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Poultry-keeping in Back Yards—F. Bulletin 1508, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Poultry Equipment—Circular 506, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Producing High Quality Eggs—Circular 494, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Selection of Hens for Egg Production—F. Bulletin 1727, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Feeding for Egg Production—Circular 275, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Oats Rank First for Poultry Feed—Bulletin FS3, Iowa State Agricultural College.

- Incubation and Brooding of Chicks—F. Bulletin 1538, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Diseases and Parasites of Poultry—F. Bulletin 1652, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

Varia

- Nuts and Ways to Use Them—Miscellaneous Publication 302, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Making and Using Peanut Butter—Circular 384, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Making Fermented Pickles—F. Bulletin 1438, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Soybeans for the Table—Leaflet 166, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Honey and Some of Its Uses—Leaflet 113, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Production of Maple Syrup and Sugar—F. Bulletin 1366, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Production of Sargo Syrup—F. Bulletin 1791, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Homemade Jellies, Jams, and Preserves—F. Bulletin 1800, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Homemade Fruit Butters—F. Bulletin 900, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- How to Economize on Fruit (bulletin) School of Living.
- Containers for Fruits and Vegetables—F. Bulletin 1821, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Jellies, Preserves, and Fruit Juices, Boys and Fenton—Bulletin E267, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Homemade Cheeses—Bulletin E322, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Pickles and Relishes—Bulletin E294, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Refrigerated Storages, Arnold—Bulletin P724, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

- Kitchen Storage Space, Jonas—Bulletin E398, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- A Useful Supply of Kitchenware, Pringle—Bulletin E357, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

5. THE PRODUCTIVE HOME: FABRICS, CLOTHING, TEXTILES, ETC.

- How to Economize on Laundry (bulletin)—School of Living. Method and Equipment for Home Laundering—F. Bulletin 1497, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Stain Removal From Fabrics—F. Bulletin 1474, U. S. Dept of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Home Dyeing With Natural Dyes—Miscellaneous Publication 230, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- How to Economize on Dyeing Textiles and Yarns (bulletin)—School of Living.
- A Manual on Home Weaving of Fabrics and Furnishings (bulletin)—School of Living.
- Fabric Insects: How to Combat Them in the Home—Circular 473, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Window Curtaining—F. Bulletin 1633, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Judging Fabric Quality—F. Bulletin 1831, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Guides for Buying Sheets, Blankets, and Bath Towels—F. Bulletin 1765, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Quality Guides for Buying Ready-Made Dresses—Leaflet 105, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Women's Dresses: a Buying Guide—F. Bulletin 1851, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Hosiery for Women: a Buying Guide—Miscellaneous Publication 342, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Clothing Section (set of 9 charts)—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Organization of the Sewing Center in the Home, Cushman—Bulletin P492, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

- Letters From a Homemaker to a Friend on House Cleaning—Bulletin E262, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Letters From a Homemaker to a Friend on Household Management—Bulletin E263, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Clothing for Children, Scott—Bulletin E328, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Closets for the Storage of Clothing—Bulletin E327, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

6. THE PRODUCTIVE HOME: THE VEGETABLE GARDEN

The Family Garden: Growing, Canning, Storage, etc. (For Rural and Suburban Homes)

- Gardens for Food Supplies—F. Bulletin 1746, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Home Vegetable Garden—Bulletin 198, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- The City Home Garden-F. Bulletin 1044, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Home Garden, Pratt—Bulletin E344, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Permanent Fruit and Vegetable Gardens—F. Bulletin 1242, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Vegetable Seeds for the Home Garden—F. Bulletin 1390, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Tomatoes for Canning—F. Bulletin 1233, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Wilt Resistant Tomato Varities—Circular 490, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Problems in Growing Tomatoes—Circular 491, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Carrot Culture—Circular 386, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Spinach, Early and Late—Circular 404, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

- Asparagus Culture—F. Bulletin 1646, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Asparagus: Its Planting, Care, and Management—Circular 507, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Rhubarb Production—Leaflet 126, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Production of Eggplant—Leaflet 131, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Growing Potatoes—Bulletin 344, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Three New Varieties of Bush Lima Beans—Bulletin 461, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Growing Sweet Corn—F. Bulletin 1634, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Production of Pumpkins—Leaflet 141, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Everbearing Strawberries—F. Bulletin 901, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Strawberry Culture in the South Atlantic States and Gulf Coast—F. Bulletin 1026, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Strawberry Culture in the Western United States—F. Bulletin 1027, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Strawberry Culture in the Eastern United States—F. Bulletin 1028, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Strawberry Culture in Illinois—Circular 453, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Strawberry Culture—Bulletin 404, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Peanut Growing—F. Bulletin 1656, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Muskmelons—F. Bulletin 1468, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Growing Muskmelons—Circular 405, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

- Watermelons—F. Bulletin 1394, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- How to Economize on Fertilizer (bulletin)—School of Living.
- The Compost Pile (bulletin: short practical instructions in biodynamic farming and gardening)—Biodynamic Farming and Gardening Association, Inc., Kimberton Farms, Route 2, Phoenixville, Pa.
- Production of Spinach—Leaflet 128, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Production of Endive—Leaflet 133, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Production of Peppers—Leaflet 140, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Culture of Table Beets-Leaflet 127, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Production of Carrots—Leaflet 125, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Sweet Corn Hybrids—Circular 504, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Celery Growing—F. Bulletin 1269, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Onion Culture—Circular 410, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Production of Turnips—Leaflet 142, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Lettuce Growing—F. Bulletin 1609, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- 4-H Vegetable Growing—Bulletin J46, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Frost and the Prevention of Frost Damage—F. Bulletin 1588, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Effect of Various Temperatures on the Storage and Ripening of Tomatoes—Technical Bulletin 268, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Long-Row Garden From Planting to Storage—Circular 325, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

- Saving Garden Crops From Insect Injuries—Circular 437, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Ants: How to Combat Them—Circular 456, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Control of Diseases and Insects—Bulletin E206, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Home Storage of Vegetables—Bulletin 184, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Home Storage of Vegetables—F. Bulletin 879, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Potato Storage and Storage Houses—F. Bulletin 847, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- How to Prepare Fruits and Vegetables for Freezer Storage and How to Use Them—Circular 510, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Cold Storage of Vegetables—Bulletin P602, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Conserving Food Value, Flavor, and Attractiveness in Cooking Vegetables—Circular 265, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Storage of Sweet Potatoes—F. Bulletin 1442, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Home Canning of Foods for Family Use—Circular 394, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Home Canning of Fruits, Vegetables, and Meats—F. Bulletin 1762, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Containers for Fruits and Vegetables—F. Bulletin 1821, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Care of Food in the Home—F. Bulletin 1374, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Hotbeds and Coldframes-F. Bulletin 1743, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Sash Greenhouses—Leaflet 124, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Greenhouse Construction and Heating—F. Bulletin 1318, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

7. THE PRODUCTIVE HOME: THE FRUIT GARDEN

The Family Fruit Garden (for rural and suburban homes)

- Growing Fruit for the Home—Bulletin E421, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- How to Economize on Fruit (bulletin)—School of Living.
- Tree Fruits-Bulletin 341, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Pruning Fruit Trees—Bulletin 185, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Bramble Fruits: Raspberries, Blackberries, Dewberries: How to Grow Them—Circular 508, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Raspberries and Other Bramble Fruits—Bulletin E224, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Blackberry Growing—F. Bulletin 1399, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Raspberry Culture—F. Bulletin 887, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Dwarf Fruits—Leaflet 178, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Nut Growing—Bulletin P573, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Why Fruit Trees Fail to Bear—Leaflet 172, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Diseases and Insects of Small Fruits—Bulletin E306, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Grape Propagation (Pruning and Training)—F. Bulletin 471, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Grape Production—Bulletin E375, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Grape Development and Improvement Yearbook Separate 1587, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Grape Pruning—Circular 468, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

- Permanent Fruit and Vegetable Gardens—F. Bulletin 1242, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Growing Fruit for Home Use—F. Bulletin 1001, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Growing Fruit for Home Use—Circular 482, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Production of Maple Sirup and Sugar—F. Bulletin 1366, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Plum and Prune Growing-F. Bulletin 1372, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Growing Cherries—F. Bulletin 776, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Pear Growing—F. Bulletin 1739, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Growing Peaches: Sites and Cultural Methods—F. Bulletin 917, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Tree Bracing and Wound Treatment—Bulletin E312, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Bridge-graft and Save Trunk-Injured Fruit Trees—Circular 381, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Grafting Fruit Trees, Bulletin E387, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Directions for Spraying Fruits—Circular 492, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Mouse and Rabbit Control in Orchards—Bulletin E338, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Pruning Apple Trees—Circular 349, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Planting and Care of the Apple Orchard Bulletin E384, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Practical Sanitation for Apple Orchards—Circular 443, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Honeybees for Pollination—Bulletin E434, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

- Beekeeping—F. Bulletin 1215, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Treatment of American Fowl Brood—F. Bulletin 1713, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Spring Management of the Apiary—Bulletin E436, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Transferring Bees to Modern Hives—F. Bulletin 961, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Shall We Move to the Country?—Circular 479, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- The Electrified Rural Home (pamphlet)—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.

Note: For canning and storage of fruit, Confer bibliography on the vegetable garden: Canning and Storage of Food in the Home.

8. FAMILY LIFE IN CHRIST: HOLY MASS, THE LITURGY, ETC.

- Family Life in Christ, Therese Mueller-The Liturgical Press.
- Praying the Mass, Clendenin and Butler—307 E. Central Ave., Wichita, Kan.
- My Lenten Missal, L. F. Stedman—Confraternity of the Precious Blood, Brooklyn, N. Y.
- My Sunday Missal, L. F. Stedman—Confraternity of the Precious Blood, Brooklyn, N. Y.
- Community Mass (Missa Recitata) The Queen's Work Press.
- Leaflet Missal-The Catholic Center, Can.
- A Layman Looks at the Mass, A. Kuhl—The Queen's Work Press.
- Well, What Is the Mass? D. A. Lord, S. J.—The Queen's Work Press.
- At Mass, C. C. Martindale, S. J.—Catholic Truth Society, England.

- What Is He Doing at the Altar? C. C. Martindale, S. J.—Catholic Truth Society, England.
- My Sacrifice and Yours, Virgil Michel, O. S. B.—The Liturgical Press.
- Why the Mass? Traufler and Michel, O. S. B.—The Liturgical Press.
- The Ceremonies of the Mass, Smyth-Paulist Press.
- Divine Worship, J. Pinsk and W. Busch-The Liturgical Press.
- Study the Mass, P. Parsch and W. Busch—The Liturgical Press.
- The Mass-Drama, W. Busch-The Liturgical Press.
- The Holy Sacrifice of the Mass-St. Anthony's Guild Press.
- It's Your Mass Too, H. Calkins, O. S. M.—3121 W. Jackson Blvd., Chicago, Ill.
- The Mass, F. C. Costelloe—Catholic Truth Society, England.
- The Spirit of the Liturgy, E. Caronti and V. Michel, O. S. B. The Liturgical Press.
- If I Be Lifted Up, P. Bussard—The Liturgical Press.
- Altar and Sanctuary, A. A. Clendenin—307 E. Central Ave., Wichita, Kan.
- Liturgy the Life of the Church, L. Beauduin and V. Michel, O. S. B.—The Liturgical Press.
- The New and Eternal Testament, F. J. Morrell—307 E. Central Ave., Wichita, Kan.
- How to Use the Missal for the Laity—Catholic Truth Society, England.
- Mothers' Manual—La Leche Motherhood Shrine, St. Augustine, Fla.
- The Family, Schlüter-Hermkes-America Press.
- Consecration of the Family to the Sacred Heart, Forrest, M. S. C.—Paulist Press.
- Consecration of Families to the Sacred Heart, Edgar J. Bernard, S. J.—Spring Hill College.

- The Mass Chart-The Queen's Work Press.
- The Months With Mary, Daniel A. Lord, S. J.—The Queen's Work Press.
- Prayers for Our Times, James J. McQuade, S. J.—The Queen's Work Press.
- What! Me a Saint? J. P. Delaney, S. J.—The Institute of Social Order.

9. HOME BUILDING AND HOME REPAIR PROJECTS

(In the country, in smaller communities, in the suburbs of larger cities)

- Correspondence Course on a Self-built House—Eastern Michigan Co-op Association.
- Small Houses: Their Economic Designs and Construction, Ernest Flagg—Charles Scribner and Sons.
- Nova Scotia's Co-op Houses: the Story of Tompkinsville, Mary E. Arnold—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- Rammed Earth Houses—Bulletin 472, University of California, College of Agriculture.
- Rammed Earth Walls for Buildings Bulletin 277, South Dakota State College of Agriculture.
- How to Economize on Planning Your Home—School of Living.
- Rural Homes of City Workers—Bulletin P595, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- How to Economize on Buying Land for Your Home—School of Living.
- How to Economize on Materials for Your Home—School of Living.
- How to Economize on Labor in Building Your Home—School of Living.
- How to Economize in Financing the Building of Your Home—School of Living.
- Construction of Chimneys and Fireplaces—F. Bulletin 1649, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- Camp Stoves and Fireplaces (bulletin)—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Laying Out the Foundation for a Building—Bulletin C41, South Dakota State College of Agriculture.
- Heating the Home—F. Bulletin 1698, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Convenient Kitchens—F. Bulletin 1513, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Use and Abuse of Wood in House Construction—Miscellaneous Publication 358, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Keeping Up Household Appearance—Bulletin C321, South Dakota State College of Agriculture.
- The Electrified Home—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Electrifying Your Home—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Lighting Equipment for the Home—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Electric Power in the Home—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Electric Wiring-E257, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Electric Wiring—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Preventing Cracks in New Wood Floors—Leaflet 56, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Reconditioning Furniture, Wright—Bulletin E256, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Household Repairing Bulletin C319, South Dakota State Agricultural College.
- Your Money's Worth in Furniture, Wright and Brennan—Bulletin E297, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Selecting and Applying Paints—Bulletin EC372, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.

- Outside Paints and Painting—Bulletin 227, Iowa State College of Agriculture.
- Painting—F. Bulletin 1452, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Roof Coverings for Buildings and Their Repair—F. Bulletin 1751, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Simple Water Systems—Bulletin 149, Iowa State College of Agriculture.
- Home Plumbing—F. Bulletin 1426, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Home Water Supply—F. Bulletin 1448, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Water Supply and Sewage Disposal Systems for Homes—Bulletin SB245, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Water and Plumbing Systems for Homes—Circular 303, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Sewage and Sewerage of Homes—F. Bulletin 1227, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Sewage Disposal for the Home—Circular 336, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Septic Tank for Sewage Disposal Bulletin C307, South Dakota State College of Agriculture.
- Home Water Systems—Bulletin E256, Iowa State College of Agriculture.
- Planning for Plumbing—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Simple Plumbing and Repairs in the Home—F. Bulletin 1460, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Soft Water for the Home—Circular 393, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Small Concrete Construction—F. Bulletin 1480, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Plain Concrete for Family Use—F. Bulletin 1279, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- The Concrete House—Bulletin of the Portland Concrete Association, 33 West Grand Avenue, Chicago, Ill.
- Use of Concrete—F. Bulletin 1772, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Bracing Buildings—Leaflet 77, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Floors and Floor Covering—F. Bulletin 1219, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Making Cellars Dry—F. Bulletin 1572, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Protection of Buildings From Lightning—F. Bulletin 1512, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Construction of Private Driveways—Miscellaneous Publication 272, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Greenhouse Construction and Heating—F. Bulletin 1318, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Modernizing Rural Homes—F. Bulletin 1749, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Beautifying the Rural Home—F. Bulletin 1087, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Planning and Care of Lawns—F. Bulletin 1677, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Lawns and Their Care—Leaflet FL1, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- New Lawns—Bulletin E429, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Lawn Maintenance—Bulletin E430, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Roses for the Home—F. Bulletin 750, U. S. Department of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Growing Annual Flowering Plants—F. Bulletin 1171, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- How to Grow Peonies—Leaflet FL6, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

- Dahlias for the Home—F. Bulletin 1370, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Decorative Use of Flowers—Bulletin E248, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Planting the Roadside—F. Bulletin 1481, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Trees for Roadside Planting—F. Bulletin 1482, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Propagation of Trees and Shrubs—F. Bulletin 1567, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Pruning Ornamental Shrubs—Leaflet FL3, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Rockeries—Leaflet 90, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Rock Garden—Bulletin E403, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Improving the Rural Environment for Wildlife—F. Bulletin 1719, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Homes for Birds—F. Bulletin 1456, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- How to Attract Birds in the Middle Atlantic States—F. Bulletin 844, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- How to Attract Birds in the East Central States—F. Bulletin 912, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Some Common Birds Useful to the Farmer—F. Bulletin 630, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Protecting Shade Trees From Insect Damage—Circular 509, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

10. COOPERATIVES: ROCHDALE PRINCIPLES IN THE BUSINESS OF MARKETING AND BUYING

- How to Organize a Buying Club—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- What Is a Cooperative Store?—The Cooperative League, N. Y.

- What Cooperation Means to a Depression-sick America, Cooley —The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- Cooperatives: They Form a Gigantic Democratic Business Enterprise—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- Cooperative Burial Associations (with by-laws) (leaflet)—U. S. Dept. of Labor, Washington, D. C.
- Cooperative Burial Associations The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- Using Your Purchasing Association—Farm Credit Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Using a Local Cooperative as Source Material for Teaching—Farm Credit Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Sizing Up Your Cooperative—Farm Credit Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Consumers' Cooperatives, Edgar Schmiedeler, O. S. B.—The National Catholic Welfare Conference or the Paulist Press.
- A Tour of Nova Scotia Cooperatives—1938—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- Credit Unions, O'Hara-Paulist Press.
- Producer Co-ops in Action Farm Credit Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Co-op Activities Service, Rev. George Nell-Effingham, Ill.
- Organization and Management of Consumers' Cooperative Associations (with model by-laws)—U. S. Dept. of Labor, Washington, D. C.
- Organization and Management of Cooperative Gasoline and Oil Stations—U. S. Dept. of Labor, Washington, D. C.
- Organization and Management of Cooperative Housing Activities—U. S. Dept. of Labor, Washington, D. C.
- The Socialistic Trend as Affecting the Cooperative Movement, Warbasse—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- The Story of Tompkinsville, Arnold—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- Cooperative Housing, Kazan-The Cooperative League, N. Y.

- What Can the Women Do?—St. Francis Xavier University, Extension Dept., Can.
- Cooperation Between Producers and Consumers, Lincoln and Bowen—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- Producers' Cooperation—St. Francis Xavier University, Extension Dept., Can.
- Organization and Management of Consumers' Cooperative Associations and Clubs—Bulletin 598, U. S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, U. S. Dept. of Labor, Washington, D. C.
- Consumers' Credit and Productive Cooperation, Parker—Bulletin 612, U. S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, U. S. Dept. of Labor, Washington, D. C.
- Education for Cooperation-The Queen's Work Press.
- Co-ops: How Far Can They Go?—Bulletin DS-12, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Cooperation and Cooperative Associations—The Queen's Work Press.
- A Cooperative Economic Democracy, Bowen—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- A Short Introduction to Consumers' Cooperation, Cowling—Central States Cooperative League, Ill.
- Fundamentals of Consumer Cooperation, Alanne—Northern States Cooperative League, Minn.
- What Is Consumers' Cooperation? Warbasse—Central States Cooperative League.
- The Cooperative Movement, Landis—Consumer Distribution Corporation, N. Y.
- The Cooperative Movement, Dietrich—Midland Cooperative Wholesale, Minn.
- The Cooperative Movement—Yours and Mine, Edwards— The Farmers' Union Cooperative Education Service, N. D.
- Organized Labor—Organized as Consumers—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- Cooperation and Religion, M. M. Coady—The Cooperative League, N. Y.

- Questions Facing Consumers, Landis-Eastern Cooperative League, N. Y.
- Consumers Go Into Business, Carlson—Consumer Distribution Corporation, N. Y.
- Cooperative Business Enterprises Operated by Consumers-Chamber of Commerce of the U. S., Washington, D. C.
- Techniques in Consumer Cooperation, Thompson-St. Francis Xavier University, Extension Dept., Can.
- The Need for Consumer Cooperation and a Plan for Expansion -Consumer Distribution Corporation, N. Y.
- Consumer Cooperation: A Social Interpretation, Laidler and Campbell—League for Industrial Democracy, N. Y.
- The Consumers' Cooperative Movement: Technical Survey. Laidler and Campbell-League for Industrial Democracy, N.Y.
- Methods of Achieving Economic Justice, Smith-American Friends Service Committee, Pa.
- Cooperatives (and a packet of study helps on co-ops, outlining four meetings), Goslin-Foreign Policy Association, N. Y.
- Discussion Outlines Based on "Consumer Cooperation in America." Fowler—Ohio Farm Bureau.
- "You and Your Co-op" series—Farm Credit Administration, Inf. and Ext. Division, Washington, D. C.:

Using Your Co-op Creamery

Using Your Livestock Co-op

Using Your Co-op Elevator

Using Your Co-op Gin Using Your Wool Co-op

Using Your Purchasing Association.

Using Your Fruit and Vegetable Co-op

Using Your Poultry and Egg Co-op

Using Your Fluid Milk Co-op

Insuring Through Your Farmers' Mutual

Using Your National Farm Loan Association

Using Your Production Credit Association

Sizing Up Your Cooperative

Forming Farmers' Cooperatives
Financing Farmers' Cooperatives
Managing Farmers' Cooperatives
Merchandising by Farmers' Cooperatives
The Story of Farmers' Cooperatives
Using a Local Cooperative as Source Material for Teaching

A Guide for the Members of Rural Electrification Administration Cooperatives — Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.

A Fair Deal to All Through the Cooperatives (a reprint from America)—The Institute of Social Order, N. Y..

11. CREDIT UNIONS—ROCHDALE PRINCIPLES IN CREDIT

Credit Unions, MacIsaac—St. Francis Xavier University, Extension Dept., Can.

Credit Unions-The Queen's Work Press.

Credit for Consumers-Public Affairs Committee, N. Y.

The Burden of Credit-The Cooperative League, N. Y.

Bulletins and Circulars on Credit—Farm Credit Administration, Washington, D. C.

Farm Finance: What Is a Sound System?—Bulletin DS-13, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

Credit Unions in Parishes, A. J. Muench—Central Bureau Press.

Credit Unions and Social Charity, A. J. Muench—Central Bureau Press.

The Parish Credit Union: Organization and Operation, August Springob—Central Bureau Press.

Credit Unions the Self-help Way, L. S. Herron—Central Bureau Press.

Credit Unions, O'Hara-Paulist Press, N. Y.

Parish Credit Union, T. J. O'Shaughnessy—National Catholic Welfare Conference.

- Federal Credit Unions—Cooperative Thrift and Credit—Farm Credit Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Nutshell Facts About Credit Unions for Teachers Farm Credit Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Suggestions for Educational Committees of Federal Credit Unions—Farm Credit Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Ten Close-ups of Consumer Credit—Farm Credit Administration, Washington, D. C.

12. HEALTH: MEDICAL CARE

- The Layman's View About the Costs of Medical Care—Julius Rosenwald Fund, Chicago.
- Fundamental Facts on the Cost of Medical Care, Falk—Milbank Memorial Fund, N. Y.
- A Picture Book About the Costs of Medical Care—Julius Rosenwald Fund, Chicago.
- The Ability to Pay for Medical Care—Julius Rosenwald Fund, Chicago.
- Doctors, Dollars and Disease-Public Affairs Committee, N. Y.
- Organization of Medical Services—American Medical Association, Chicago.
- Rural Medical Service American Medical Association, Chicago.
- Rural Health, Felton and Short—Bulletin E187, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Hospitals for Rural Communities—F. Bulletin 1792, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Cooperatives and Medical Service—American Medical Association, Chicago.
- Health Security, Parran-Milbank Memorial Fund, N. Y.
- Health Security and How to Have It, David-St. Francis Xavier University, Extension Dept., Can.
- Health-Building America, Inc., N. Y.
- Help Yourself to Health, Warbasse—The Cooperative League, N. Y.

- Principles of Cooperative Medicine, Shadid—The Cooperative League, N. Y.
- Group Budgeting for Hospital Care, Rorem—American Hospital Association, Chicago.
- New Plans for Medical Service: Examples of Organized Local Plans of Providing or Paying for Medical Services—Julius Rosenwald Fund, Chicago.

13. FARM TENANCY: PROBLEMS, POLICIES, REFORMS, LEASE CONTRACTS, ETC.

- A Graphic Summary of Farm Tenure—Miscellaneous Publication 261, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Farm Tenancy: Report of the President's Committee—Super-intendent of Documents, Washington, D. C.
- The Bank-Head—Jones Farm Tenancy Act—Farm Security Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Farmers Without Land-Public Affairs Committee, N. Y.
- Landlord and Tenant on the Cotton Plantation, Woofter Research Monograph V Works Progress Administration, Washington, D. C.
- You Have Seen Their Faces, Caldwell and Bourke-White-Modern Age Books, Inc., N. Y.
- Farm Tenancy, Alexander Farm Security Administration, Washington, D. C.
- The Farmers' Problems—Building America, Inc., N. Y.
 The Forced March on the Farmers, Lord—Survey Graphic,
 N. Y.
- Farm Problems and Farm Policies, Tolley—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Farm Problems and Policies-Public Affairs Committee, N. Y.
- What Kind of Rural Life Can We Look Forward to in the United States? Carl Taylor—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Improving Our Rural Credit Facilities, Myers—Circular A-10, Farm Credit Administration, Washington, D. C.

- How Wisconsin Farmers Become Owners, Hibbard and Peterson—Bulletin 402, Agricultural Experiment Station, Madison, Wis.
- Reforms Needed in the Tenant System, Ashburn—The Texas Weekly, Vol. XL, No. 12 (March 23, 1935).
- The Ownership of Tenant Farms in the United States, Turner —F. Bulletin 1432, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Ownership of Tenant Farms in the North Central States, Turner—F. Bulletin 1433, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Collapse of Cotton Tenancy, Alexander, Embree, and Johnson—University of North Carolina Press.
- Should Farm Ownership Be a Goal of Agricultural Policy?—Bulletin DS-3, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- What Kind of Agricultural Policy Is Necessary to Save Our Soil?—Bulletin DS-7, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Farm Security: How Can Tenants Find It?—Bulletin DS-16, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Soil Conservation: Who Gains by It?—Bulletin DS-11, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Rural Communities: What Do They Need Most?—Bulletin DS-8, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- What Part Should Farmers in Your Country Take in Making National Agricultural Policy? — Bulletin DS-8, Extension Service, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Farm Tenant and His Renting Problems, Johnson—Bulletin 315, University of Missouri, Agricultural Experimental Station.
- Social Security for Southern Farmers, Nixon—University of North Carolina Press.

- Capacity to Pay and Farm Financing—Bulletin 449, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- The Farm Lease Contract, Gray and Turner—F. Bulletin 1164, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Farm Tenancy and Leasing—Bulletin 188, Bulletin Department, University Farm, St. Paul, Minn.
- Farm Leases: Including Father-Son Agreements—Circular 503, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Stock-share Farm Lease Form—Bulletin EC804, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture
- 50-50 Livestock Share Lease—Bulletin 207, Bulletin Department, University Farm, St. Paul, Minn.
- Farm Family Prosperity (pamphlet)—The National Catholic Rural Life Conference, Iowa
- City Slickers and Dumb Farmers (pamphlet)—The National Catholic Rural Life Conference, Iowa.
- Is Rural Life the Answer? Adams, A. J., S. J.—The Queen's Work Press.
- Do We Want to Be Farmers? (an outline of information for use in young farmer discussion groups)—General Information Series G67, Agricultural Adjustment Administration, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Development of Christian Personality Through Rural Living and Farm Work (a series of outlines for rural discussion groups) The Catholic Rural Life Information Center, Minn., or The National Catholic Rural Life Conference, Iowa.
- The Opportunity in Agriculture for the Farm Boy, Merritt— Extension Service Circular 264, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Rural Youth: Their Situation and Prospects, Melvin and Smith—Works Progress Administration, Division of Research, Washington, D. C.
- Why I Want My Boy to Be a Farmer, O. E. Baker—Extension Service Circulars 300 and 223, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

14. EQUIPMENT FOR THE RURAL FAMILY UNIT: FARM BUILDINGS, FARM ENGINEERING, FARM CONSTRUCTION, ETC.

- How to Plan the Farm Layout—Bulletin E55, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Farm Property Improvement—F. Bulletin 1801, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Electric Power on the Farm (pamphlet) Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Available Agricultural Engineering and Blue Print Plans—Circular 323, South Dakota State Agricultural College.
- Laying Out the Foundation for a Building—Circular 41, South Dakota State Agricultural College.
- Selection of Lumber for Farm Buildings—F. Bulletin 1756, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Space Requirements and Storage Capacities for Farm Structures—Bulletin EC711, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Small Concrete Construction on the Farm—F. Bulletin 1480, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Use of Concrete—F. Bulletin 1772, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Use of Concrete on the Farm—Bulletin E285, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Concrete—F. Bulletin 1279, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Masonry Barn Design and Construction—Bulletin R207, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- The Design and Construction of Masonry Water Supply Tanks
 —Bulletin B302, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Rammed Earth Walls for Buildings—F. Bulletin 1500, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Plans of Farm Buildings for Western States—Miscellaneous Publication 319, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- Plans of Farm Buildings for North Eastern States—Miscellaneous Publication 278, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Bracing Farm Buildings—Leaflet 77, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Silos: Types and Construction—F. Bulletin 1820, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Electrifying Your Farm (pamphlet) Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Lighting Equipment for the Farm (pamphlet)—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Wiring Your Farm (pamphlet)—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- Farmstead Water Supply—F. Bulletin 1448, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Electric Wiring for Rural Buildings—Bulletin E257, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Fire Protective Construction on the Farm—F. Bulletin 1590, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Protection of Buildings and Farm Property From Lightning— F. Bulletin 1512, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Roof Coverings for Farm Buildings and Their Repair—F. Bulletin 1751, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Rat Proofing Buildings and Premises—F. Bulletin 1638, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Rats and Their Control—Bulletin E353, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Construction of Private Driveways—Miscellaneous Publication 272, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Building Roads on the Farm—Bulletin E332, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- The Electrified Farm (pamphlet)—Rural Electrification Administration, Washington, D. C.
- How to Use Electricity on the Farm—Bulletin E410, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

- Painting on the Farm—F. Bulletin 1452, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Outside Paints and Painting—F. Bulletin 227, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Selecting and Applying Paints—Bulletin EC732, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Electric Fencing—Circular C-2, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Farm Machinery—Its Purchase, Operation and Adjustment—Circular 309, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Adjustment and Repair of Farm Machinery—Bulletin EC 739, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Grinding the Farm Tools—Bulletin E378, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- The Use of Logs and Poles in Farm Construction—F. Bulletin 1660, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Preservative Treatment of Farm Timbers—F. Bulletin 744, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Longer Durability for Fence Posts and Farm Timbers—Bulletin 109, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Simple Hitches for Farm Use—Bulletin 740, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- The Farm Shop and Tool Equipment—Bulletin E108, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Rope and Its Uses—Bulletin E24, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Practical Use of Rope on the Farm—Circular 301, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Tying Knots and Splicing Rope—Bulletin J13, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Big Teams on Farms—Circular 355, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Better Plowing—Circular 450, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

- Plow Adjustment—Bulletin E381, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Tractor Repair and Maintenance—Circular 499, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Soldering—Bulletin E57, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

Storage in Farm Structures

- Farm Bulk Storage of Small Grains—F. Bulletin 1636, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Space Requirements and Storage Capacities of Farm Structures—Bulletin EC711, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Corncribs—F. Bulletin 1701, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Corn Storage Buildings—Bulletin E262, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- How to Stop Weevil Damage in Stored Grain—Circular 489, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Silos: Types and Construction—F. Bulletin 1820, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Storage of Vegetables—F. Bulletin 879, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Potato Storage and Storage Houses—F. Bulletin 847, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Storage of Apples—Bulletin E440, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

15. EQUIPMENT FOR LIVESTOCK: HOGS, SHEEP, CATTLE (BEEF AND DAIRY), POULTRY, ETC.

Hogs:

- Practical Hog Houses—F. Bulletin 1487, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Hog-Lot Equipment—F. Bulletin 1490, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- Movable Hog Houses—Circular 320, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Construction of Self-Feeders and Use in Pork Production—Circular 319, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

Sheep:

Equipment for Farm Sheep Raising—F. Bulletin 810, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

Cattle for Beef:

- Beef Cattle Barns—F. Bulletin 1350, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Feed Lot and Ranch Equipment for Beef Cattle—F. Bulletin 1584, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Cattle Feeding Barns and Shelters—Bulletin 74, Iowa State Agricultural College.

For the Dairy:

- Farm Dairy Houses—F. Bulletin 1214, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Dairy Barn Construction—Bulletin 1342, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Safety Bull Pen and Shed—Bulletin 187, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Principles of Dairy Barn Ventilation—F. Bulletin 1393, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Length and Floor Construction of Dairy Stalls—Bulletin R150, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- The Use of Waterbowls in the Dairy Barn—Bulletin 292, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Building and Remodeling Dairy Barns—Circular 478, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Combination Grain and Mash Trough—Bulletin E243, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Silos: Types and Construction—F. Bulletin 1820, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- Inexpensive Cooling Tanks for Milk and Cream—Bulletin EC725, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Milk-House Construction—Bulletin E330, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

Buildings and Equipment for Poultry:

- One-Room Brooder House—Bulletin 144, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- A Colony Brooder House That Starts Chicks Right—Circular 291, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Poultry Equipment—Circular 506, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Directions for Building the Straw Loft Poultry House—Circular 501, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Straw Loft Poultry House—Bulletin 146—Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Laying-House Equipment—Bulletin 147, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Poultry Houses and Fixtures—F. Bulletin 1554, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Brooding Chicks Under Electric Hovers Bulletin E366, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Poultry Range Shelter—Bulletin E280, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Outdoor Poultry Feeder—Bulletin 373, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- The Ventilation of Poultry Laying Houses—Bulletin E315, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

16. EQUIPMENT FOR THE RURAL FAMILY UNIT: CARE OF LIVESTOCK—BREEDING, GROWING, FEEDING, MANAGEMENT, ETC.

Horses:

- The Farm Horse—Its Feeding, Care and Breeding—Circular 424, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Care and Management of Farm Work Horses—F. Bulletin 1419, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- Horse-Breeding Suggestions for Farmers—F. Bulletin 803, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Breaking and Training Colts—F. Bulletin 1368, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Care and Feeding of Horses—Bulletin E250, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- How to Select a Sound Horse—F. Bulletin 779, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Breeds of Draft Horses—F. Bulletin 619, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Draft Horse Management Bulletin EC206, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Colt Production in Iowa—Publication P1, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Feeding and Management of Horses—Bulletin 130, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Feeding Horses—F. Bulletin 1030, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Improving Horses and Mules—Yearbook Separate 1564, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Mule Production—F. Bulletin 1341, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Big Teams on Farms—Circular 355, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Special Report on Diseases of the Horse—Special Publication U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Common Parasites of the Horse—Circular 397, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

Dairy Cattle:

- Dairy Cattle Breeds—F. Bulletin 1443, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Dairy Cattle Judging—F. Bulletin 1769, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- Selecting Dairy Cattle—Circular 486, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- How Old Are Your Bulls and Cows and What Difference Does It Make?—Bulletin 290a, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Cooperative Dairy Bull Associations—F. Bulletin 1830, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Dairy Herd Improvement Through Cooperative Bull Associations—F. Bulletin 1532, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Feeding and Management of the Dairy Calf—Publication, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Feeding and Management of Dairy Calves—Bulletin 214, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Feeding, Care and Management of Young Dairy Stock—F. Bulletin 1723, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Feeding the Dairy Cow Efficiently—Bulletin 363, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Practical Feeding and Nutritional Requirements of Young Dairy Stock—Yearbook Separate 1703, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Feeding Dairy Cows—F. Bulletin 1626, U. S. Dept of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Managing the Dairy Bull—Circular 460, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Silage Crops for Dairy Cattle—Circular 463, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Soybeans As a Source of Fat in Dairy Rations—Bulletin P722, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Feeding the Dairy Herd—Circular 502, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Beef Cattle Breeds for Beef and for Beef and Milk—F. Bulletin 1779, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- 4-H Dairy Club Handbook—Bulletin J29, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Meeting the Mineral Needs of Farm Animals—Bulletin E350, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

Feeding Dairy Calves and Heifers—Bulletin E361, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

Beef Cattle:

- Beef Production on the Farm—F. Bulletin 1592, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Beef Calf: Its Growth and Development—F. Bulletin 1135, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Feeding Cattle for Beef-F. Bulletin 1549, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Buying and Feeding Baby Beeves—Bulletin E188, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Creep Feeding Calves—Bulletin EC243, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Beef From Calves Fed Grain Before and After Weaning— Technical Bulletin 208, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Beef on the Farm: Slaughtering, Cutting, Curing—F. Bulletin 1415, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Dressing and Cutting Beef on the Farm—Bulletin 72, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Dehorning, Castrating, Branding and Marketing Beef Cattle— F. Bulletin 1600, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Use of Grass in Producing Finished Cattle—Bulletin SB315, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Value of Grinding Grains and Roughages for Livestock—Bulletin 252, South Dakota State Agricultural College.
- Essentials of Animal Breeding—F. Bulletin 1167, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

Hogs: Breeding, Growing, Feeding, Management

- Hog Health Makes Wealth—Bulletin 119, University of Minnesota, College of Agriculture.
- Cheaper and More Profitable Pork Through Swine Sanitation—Circular 306, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

- Hog Manual—Bulletin SC40, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Breeds of Swine—F. Bulletin 1263, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Swine Production—F. Bulletin 1437, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Brood Sow and Litter Feeding and Management—Bulletin E218, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Self-Feeding Versus Hand-Feeding Sows and Litters—F. Bulletin 1504, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Swine: Some Current Breeding Problems—Yearbook Separate 1562, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Trend in Hog Production Is Toward Efficiency and Quality of Product—Yearbook Separate 1397, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C
- Market Hog Production—Bulletin 220, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- 4-H Pig Club Handbook—Bulletin J48, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Comparative Value of Mature Sows and Gilts for Producing Market Hogs—Circular 472, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Feeding Hogs—Circular 395, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Oats As a Feed for Swine—Circular 414, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Saving the Orphan Pigs—Bulletin 80, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Castration of Hogs—F. Bulletin 1357, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Why Hog Profits Vary—Bulletin 255, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Hog Cholera: Prevention and Treatment—F. Bulletin 834, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Diseases, Ailments and Abnormal Conditions of Swine—F. Bulletin 1244, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- Internal Parasites of Swine—F. Bulletin 1787, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Common Parasites of Swine—Bulletin 269, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Controlling Lungworms of Swine—Leaflet 118, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Essentials of Animal Breeding—F. Bulletin 1167, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

Sheep:

- The Sheep Enterprise: How to Establish and Care for the Farm Flock—Circular 415, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Breeds of Sheep for the Farm—F. Bulletin 576, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C
- Farm Sheep Raising for Beginners—F. Bulletin 840, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Castrating and Docking Lambs—F. Bulletin 1134, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Raising Sheep on Temporary Pastures—F. Bulletin 1181, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Feeding and Management of Sheep—Bulletin 138, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Judging Sheep—F. Bulletin 1199, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Breeding Problems With Sheep—Yearbook Separate 1563, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Feeding Lambs—Circular 413, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Forage Crops for Lambs—Bulletin 207, South Dakota State College of Agriculture.
- The Sheep—Bulletin 177, South Dakota State College of Agriculture.
- Sheep Production—Bulletin E399, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

- Farm Sheep Facts—Bulletin SC48, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Methods of Feeding and Grain Rations for Fattening Lambs— Bulletin 278, South Dakota State College of Agriculture.
- Sheep Scab—F. Bulletin 713, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Sheep Tick and Its Eradication by Dipping—F. Bulletin 798, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Diseases of Sheep—F. Bulletin 1155, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Parasites and Parasitic Diseases of Sheep—F. Bulletin 1330, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Controlling Internal Parasites of Sheep—Bulletin E407, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Controlling Stomach Worms in Sheep and Lambs—Leaflet 89, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Grading Wool—F. Bulletin 1805, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Preparing Wool for Market—Leaflet 92, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- 4-H Sheep Club Handbook—Bulletin J45, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

Poultry:

- Selecting Hens for Egg Production—F. Bulletin 1727, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Farm Poultry Raising—F. Bulletin 1524, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Rearing Chickens—Bulletin E153, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Oats Rank First for Poultry Feed—Bulletin FS3, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Brooding, Feeding and Growing Chicks—Bulletin 148, Iowa State Agricultural College

- Poultry Rations—Bulletin E45, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Laying Flock Selection and Culling—Bulletin 170, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Culling and Selecting for Egg Production—Bulletin E175, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Keeping the Poultry Flock Healthy—Circular 374, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Feeding for Egg Production—Circular 275, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Raising Chicks at a Profit—Circular 329, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Feeding for Egg Production—Bulletin E222, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Producing High Quality Eggs—Circular 494, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Marketing Eggs—F. Bulletin 1378, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Marketing Poultry—F. Bulletin 1377, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Feeding Chickens—F. Bulletin 1541, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Incubation and Brooding of Chickens—F. Bulletin 1538, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Poultry Keeping in Back Yards—F. Bulletin 1508, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Studies of the Market Quality of Eggs—Bulletin 441, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Why Some Eggs Do Not Hatch—Bulletin E205, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- How to Economize on Poultry and Eggs (bulletin)—School of Living.
- Capon Production—Bulletin EC1431, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.

- Capons and Caponizing—F. Bulletin 849, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Protecting Poultry From Predacious Birds—Leaflet 96, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Diseases and Parasites of Poultry—F. Bulletin 1652, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Common Poultry Diseases—Bulletin 156, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Poultry Diseases—Bulletin E337, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- The Control of Poultry: Lice, Mice, and Worms—Bulletin 155, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Squab Raising—F. Bulletin 684, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Duck Raising—F. Bulletin 697, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Goose Raising—F. Bulletin 767, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Turkey Raising—F. Bulletin 1409, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Turkeys—Bulletin E359, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Dressing and Packing Turkeys for Market—F. Bulletin 1694, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Grading Dressed Turkeys—F. Bulletin 1815, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Poultry Houses and Fixtures—F. Bulletin 1554, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Care of Rabbits—Bulletin E284, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

17. CARE OF FIELDS AND CROPS

Biology-Conservation-Diversification in Working

With the Soil

Farm Family Prosperity (pamphlet)—National Catholic Rural Life Conference, Iowa.

- City Slickers and Dumb Farmers (pamphlet)—National Catholic Rural Life Conference, Iowa.
- Grow a Living—Don't Buy It—I. H. C. Demonstration Farms, N. Dak.
- Nitrogen-Fixing Bacteria and Legumes F. Bulletin 1784, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Farm Manure—F. Bulletin 1632, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Compost Pile (bulletin: short practical instructions in biodynamic farming and gardening)—Biodynamic Farming and Gardening Association, Inc., Kimberton Farms, Route 2, Phoenixville, Pa.
- Winter Legumes for Green Manure—Yearbook Separate 1663, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Use of Clover and Green Manure Crops—Yearbook Separate 1631, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Summer Crops for Green Manure and Soil Improvement—F. Bulletin 1750, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Choosing Legumes and Perennial Grasses—Bulletin 331, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Legumes in Soil Conservation Practices—Leaflet 163, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Place of Pasture in Farming—Bulletin 323, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Putting New Life Into Pastures—Bulletin FS2, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Growing Barley for Feed-F. Bulletin 1732, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Methods of Making Silage From Grasses and Legumes—Technical Bulletin 611, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Making and Feeding of Silage—F. Bulletin 578, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Silage: Harvesting, Storing, Feeding—Bulletin EC768, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.

- Grass Silage—Bulletin E409, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Forage Crops and Their Culture—F. Bulletin 1511, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Important Cultivated Grasses—F. Bulletin 1524, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- A Pasture Handbook—Miscellaneous Publication 194, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Pasture Improvement and Management—Circular 465, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Grass and Other Thick Growing Vegetation in Erosion Control
 —Yearbook Separate 1641, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture,
 Washington, D. C.
- Some Relationships of Soil to Plant and Animal Nutrition—Yearbook Separate 1652, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Neglected Soil Constituents That Affect Plant and Animal Development—Yearbook Separate 1653, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Better Plants and Animals—Yearbook Separate 1567, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Livestock—Yearbook Separate 1560, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Livestock for Small Farms—F. Bulletin 1753, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Some Tested Methods for Livestock Improvement—Miscellaneous Circular 33, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- It Still Pays to Farm Well—Circular 458, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Diversified Farming Demonstrated—I. H. C. Demonstration Farms, N. Dak.
- Ten Years of Experimental Results on Cultivated Pastures—Bulletin 324, South Dakota State Agricultural College.
- Meadow Improvement—Bulletin E181, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

- A Comparison of Alfalfa, Sweet Clover and Sudan Grass As Pasture Crops for Dairy Cows—Bulletin 256, South Dakota State Agricultural College.
- More and Hardier Alfalfa-I. H. C. Demonstration Farms, N. Dak.
- A Nitrogen Factory on Every Farm—Circular 326, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Growing Root Crops for Livestock—F. Bulletin 1699, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Alfalfa Growing-I. H. C. Demonstration Farms, N. Dak.
- Growing Alfalfa—F. Bulletin 1722, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Alfalfa-Bulletin 211, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Brome Grass for Erosion Control—Bulletin EC119, University of Nebraska, College of Agriculture.
- Alfalfa for Livestock—Bulletin C259, South Dakota State Agricultural College.
- Curing and Storage of Alfalfa Hay—Bulletin R251, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Utilization of Alfalfa-F. Bulletin 1229, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Red Clover Culture—F. Bulletin 1339, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Sudan Grass—F. Bulletin 1126, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Growing and Utilization of Sorghums for Forage—F. Bulletin 1158, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Farm Practice With Lespedeza—F. Bulletin 1724, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Lespedeza—Bulletin 416, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Sweet Clover Management—Bulletin EC134, University of Nebraska, Agricultural College.
- Sweet Clover—Bulletin 394, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.

- Sweet Clover—Leaflet 23, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Crested Wheat Grass—Leaflet 104, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Vetch Culture and Uses-F. Bulletin 1740, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Test Your Soil for Acidity—Learn Where Limestone Is Needed and How Much—Circular 346, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Making Lime on the Farm—F. Bulletin 1801, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Limestone: The Key to Soil Building and Higher Crop Yields—Circular 375, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Liming Soils—Bulletin E78, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Ten Billion Little Dams—Miscellaneous Publication, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Terracing for Soil and Water Conservation—F. Bulletin 1789, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Better Plowing—Circular 450, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Terrace Outlets and Farm Drainage Ways—F. Bulletin 1814, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Farm Drainage: Its Maintenance and Construction—Circular 493, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Native and Adapted Grasses for Conservation of Soil and Moisture—F. Bulletin 1812, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Clover Crops for Soil Conservation—F. Bulletin 1758, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Terracing to Reduce Erosion—Bulletin B172, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Tree Planting: A Part of Erosion Control—Bulletin 166, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- The Shelterbelt As an Asset on Farms—Bulletin 108, Iowa State Agricultural College.

- Trees to Control Soil Erosion on Farms—Bulletin 223, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Treatment and Care of Tree Wounds—F. Bulletin 1726, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Evergreen Windbreaks for Farmsteads—Bulletin 217, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- The Windbreak As a Farm Asset—F. Bulletin 1405, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Conservation Farming Practices and Flood Control—Miscellaneous Publication 253, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Prevention and Control of Gullies-F. Bulletin 1813, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Stop Gullies: Save Your Farm—F. Bulletin 1737, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Using Soil-binding Plants to Reclaim Gullies—F. Bulletin 1697, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Preventing Soil Blowing-F. Bulletin 1771, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Strip-cropping for Soil Conservation—F. Bulletin 1776, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Instruments and Methods of Tillage to Prevent Soil Blowing —F. Bulletin 1797, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- To Hold This Soil—Miscellaneous Publication 321, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Crop Rotation—Yearbook Separate 1630, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Strip Cropping—Yearbook Separate 1642, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- General Aspects of the Soil Erosion Problem—Yearbook Separate 1639, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Mechanical Measures of Erosion Control—Yearbook Separate 1643, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Soils and Men—Yearbook Separate 1607, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- The Nation and the Soil—Yearbook Separate 1612, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Nation and the Soil—Yearbook Separate 1619, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Nation and the Soil—Yearbook Separate 1620, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Anchoring Farmlands—Miscellaneous Bulletin, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Achieving a Balanced Agriculture (bulletin)—U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Floods and Accelerated Erosion—Miscellaneous Publication 196, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Soil Blowing and Dust Storms—Miscellaneous Publication 221, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Drainage, Plowing, Seedbed Preparation and Cultivation—Bulletin E183, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Is Soil Conservation the Answer to the Farm Problem?—Bulletin CDP1, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Soil Conservation—Its Place in National Agricultural Policy— Bulletin G54, Agricultural Adjustment Administration, Washington, D. C.
- What Is Soil Erosion?—Miscellaneous Publication 286, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Erosion and Its Control—Miscellaneous Publication 301, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- The Control of Soil Erosion—Bulletin E438, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Soil Conservation Survey Handbook—Miscellaneous Publication 352, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Soil-depleting, Soil-conserving And Soil-building Crops Leaflet 165, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Woodlands for Farms—Bulletin 222, Iowa State Agricultural College.
- Planting and Care of Trees—Bulletin E185, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

- Forestry Farming—F. Bulletin 1794, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Forest Planting—Circular 477, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Farm Woodlands—Yearbook Separate 779, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Improvement of Forest Trees—Yearbook Separate 1599, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Management of Forest Soils—Yearbook Separate 1650, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Timber: Mine or Crop?—Yearbook Separate 886, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Wood for the Nation—Yearbook Separate 835, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Growing and Planting Hardwood Seedlings—F. Bulletin 1123, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Growing Black Locust Trees—F. Bulletin 1628, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Planting Black Walnuts—Leaflet 84, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Forest for Erosion Control—Yearbook Separate 1640, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Forestry and Farm Income—F. Bulletin 1117, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Our Forests: What They Are and What They Mean to Us—Miscellaneous Publication 162, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Living and Forest Lands—Miscellaneous Publication 388, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Growing Wood As a Crop—Bulletins E270 and E291, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- Forestry and Permanent Prosperity—Miscellaneous Publication 247, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Care and Improvement of the Farm Woods—F. Bulletin 1177, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.

- Hand Planting Forests—Bulletin J28, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.
- The Farm Woods: A Savings Bank Paying Interest—Leaflet 29, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Clearing Land of Brush and Stumps—F. Bulletin 1526, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Soil Defense in the Northeast—F. Bulletin 1810, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Soil Defense in the South—F. Bulletin 1809, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Community Forests-Miscellaneous Bulletin, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Cowpeas: Culture and Varieties—F. Bulletin 1148, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Cowpeas: Utilization—F. Bulletin 1153, U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Washington, D. C.
- Utilizing the Soybean Crop in Livestock Feeding—Circular 369, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Soybeans—Bulletin 456, University of Illinois, College of Agriculture.
- Soil, Field-crop, Pasture and Vegetable-crop Management—Bulletin P639, Cornell University, College of Agriculture.

18. THE USE OF COMPETITION AND AWARDS FOR PROGRESS IN HOME BUILDING AND HOME ACTIVITY

In Tennessee, Mississippi, Arkansas, and Missouri through the "Plant to Live and Prosper" competition and to some extent in Nebraska through the "Pasture-Forage-Livestock" competition, people on farms and people in smaller communities, young and old alike, have created interest and achieved striking results in better homes, better domestic economy, better community cooperation, better land utilization. This competition is centered around an annual program. Each family participating keeps its own record, to be based on the following points:

40% for "living at home";

20% for soil conservation;

20% for diversification;

20% for home improvement;

100%—perfect score.

Tenant families are not in a position to compete with owner families on these points. Hence separate contests are conducted, one for tenant families, another for owner families. County judges select the county winners. State judges select the state winners. For further information write to Waltenburham, Memphis Commercial Appeal, Memphis, Tennessee or to the Memphis Chamber of Commerce Agricultural Committee.

Similar contests, conducted on a smaller scale, can be held in any community and directed by local leaders. We suggest that farm families divided into proper competing groups such as tenants or owners according to first, second, or third year of competition, etc., work out a score card and record book for each participating group. Special record books may be printed or simple composition books may be used for the purpose of keeping the annual record of achievement according to the following points:

HOMEMAKERS

in families on the homesteads (in the country on the farm).

USING RESOURCES (spiritual and material) MORE EFFECTIVELY IN FAMILY LIVING

Family Activity (spiritual, social, economic)

Better Housing

Better Food Plans

Better Ways of Farming

Better Ways of Spending

20% 1. Family Activity in Family Life

Home, the center; family prayer; family cultural advance and active interest in rural life as presented by the National Catholic Rural Life Conference; family recreation at home; etc.

- 10% 2. Family Activity in the Rural Parish Life Liturgical, holy Mass the center.
- 10% 3. Family Activity in Cooperative Rural Community Life Parish, the center; rural family clubs, rural Sodalities, 4-H

clubs, credit unions, cooperatives, i.e., neighborhood co-ops for marketing farm products and for buying industrial goods.

10% 4. Home working conditions—family planning, organization of rural equipment and rural work, sanitation, water supply, good use and arrangement of convenient kitchen and convenient home appliances for home production and care of family food supplies: gardens, fruits, sufficient variety in sufficient quantities, fruit cellar, home food storage space, home meat supply, home poultry supply, etc.

10% 5. Home Beautification

Landscaping, orderliness, attractiveness, comfort, convenient arrangement of things for productivity, not merely for ornamentation.

10% 6. Use of home labor and materials in building and repair projects on the farmstead.

10% 7. Home Record Keeping

Budgeting, planning, and recording family expenditures: thrift; avoidance of excessive debt; study and use of consumerbuying guides, etc.

10% 8. Family Cooperation—in care and production of crops and animals; in family spiritual projects; in home recreational projects; etc.

10% 9. SOIL-CONSERVING, SOIL-BUILDING, AGRI-CULTURE

All due consideration and observance of the laws of growth and the laws of life: biodynamic, diversified agriculture, balanced and carefully planned relationships between human beings, animals, plants, and soil; farm productive the whole year round; COMPOSTING of manure and other organic matter before use on fields. Contour plowing and contour planting of crops, water conservation, construction of drop-in-let dams, tree planting, care of trees, etc.

Total: 100% Score Card for Contest.

In developing family and group action on the points indicated above, order some of the pamphlets indicated in the bibliographies.

Further a special contest may be worked out among the homemakers in the small towns and in the suburbs of the large cities. Many of these homemakers have some gardening in their home program already. Many others are in a position to acquire some land and take up a gardening program. A score card and family record book can easily be worked out for them too. Homemaking contests can be conducted with far-reaching success—even in city homes—when domestic production is studied.

For such groups of homemakers in the smaller communities and in the suburbs of the larger cities we suggest the following points for a competition basis:

HOMEMAKEŔS

In small communities and in the suburbs of the larger cities. USING RESOURCES (spiritual and material) MORE EFFECTIVELY FOR FAMILY LIVING

Family Activity (spiritual, social, economic)

Better Housing

Better Food Plans

Better Ways of Spending

20% 1. Family Activity in Family Life

Home, the center; family prayer; family cultural advance and active interest in home projects; family recreation at home; etc.

10% 2. Family Activity in Parish Life Liturgical, holy Mass the center.

10% 3. Family Activity in Cooperative Community Life

Parish, the center; neighborhood family clubs, Sodalities, credit unions, cooperatives, *i.e.*, neighborhood co-ops for marketing and buying, etc.

20% 4. Home Working Conditions

Family planning, organization of equipment and work, sanitation, water supply, good use and arrangement of convenient kitchen and convenient home appliances for home production, or at least processing, cooking, canning, and storing of some family food supplies; gardens for some vegetables and some fruits; some provision for some home storage; keeping a cow or goat, keeping some chickens for home supply or poultry products, etc.

10% 5. Home Beautification

Landscaping, orderliness, attractiveness, comfort, convenient arrangement of things for productivity, not mere ornamentation. 10% 6. Use of home labor and perhaps some home materials

in the building and repair projects in the productive homes of the smaller communities.

10% 7. Home Record Keeping

Budgeting, planning, and recording family expenditures; thrift; avoidance of excessive debt; study and use of consumerbuying guides; etc.

10% 8. Family Cooperation

In family spiritual projects; in home recreational projects; in home productivity projects related to home food care and preparation, garden production, home crafts, home hobbies, home work, etc.

100% Score Card for Contest.

In developing family and group action on the points indicated above, order some of the pamphlets indicated on the bibliographies.

